THE "CALL IN" PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON TUESDAY 13 MARCH, 2012. MINUTE NO'S 117 AND 119 ARE NOT SUBJECT TO "CALL-IN."

CABINET

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT ON THURSDAY 1ST MARCH, 2012

PRESENT: Councillor P. Dowd (in the Chair)

Councillors Booth, Brodie - Browne, Fairclough, Maher, Moncur, Parry, Porter, Robertson and Shaw

114. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received.

115. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declarations of interest were received:

Member/Officer	Minute No.	Reason	<u>Action</u>
Councillor Brodie-Browne	117 - Framework Budget	Personal - His employer is involved in discussions with Council Officers relating to the provision of Supporting People Services, which are referred to in the report	Stayed in the room and took part in the consideration of the item
Councillor Shaw	117 - Framework Budget	Personal - His son is employed by Sefton Library Service which will be affected by issues referred to in the report	Stayed in the room and took part in the consideration of the item
Margaret Carney - Chief Executive	118 - Localism Act 2011 - Pay Policy	Personal - Her post is referred to in the report	Stayed in the room during the consideration of the item

116. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 February 2012 be confirmed as a correct record.

117. FRAMEWORK BUDGET

The Leader of the Council circulated a copy of the proposed Motion in respect of the Revenue Budget for 2012/13, which he intended to submit to the Budget Council Meeting, to be held later that day.

RESOLVED:

That the proposed Motion be noted at this stage and considered at the Budget Council Meeting to be held later that day.

118. LOCALISM ACT 2011 - PAY POLICY

The Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Corporate Support Services on the requirement under the Localism Act 2011 for all local authorities to produce a pay policy statement for 2012/13 and each subsequent financial year. The report set out of the proposed pay policy for the Council and the proposed changes to the functions of the Employment Procedure Committee and the Pay and Grading Committee in order to ensure compliance with the guidance in the Act.

RESOLVED:

That the Council be recommended to approve:

- (1) the proposed Pay Policy set out in Annex A to the report; and
- (2) the proposed changes to the functions of the Employment Procedure Committee and the Pay and Grading Committee set out in the report and the consequential amendments to the Council Constitution.

119. SELECTION OF MAYOR AND DEPUTY CHAIR FOR 2012/13

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Corporate Commissioning which sought the nomination of the Mayor and Deputy Chair for the Municipal Year 2012/13.

The report indicated that any nominations agreed by the Cabinet would be submitted to the Annual Council Meeting to be held on 10 May 2012 for consideration.

RESOLVED:

That the report be deferred for further consideration at the next Cabinet meeting to be held on 29 March 2012.

120. HEALTH AND WELLBEING SERVICES - FEES AND CHARGES 2012/13

The Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Older People on the review of fees and charges for 2012/13 for the services to be delivered by the Health and Wellbeing Service.

The report indicated that the review had reflected the additional income targets approved by the Council for the following service areas as part of the 2012/13 budget process:

- Libraries introduce charging for the People's Network Target £10,000
- Sports increased income target for Crosby Lakeside Adventure Centre - £200,000
- Sports increased income target for Active Sports Programmes -£10,000
- Amendment to Lifeguard saving, by increasing the charges for swimming by 3% above the rate of inflation - £27,000.

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the revised Health and Wellbeing Services fees and charges for 2012/13 as set out in Annex A of the report.

121. PLANNING SERVICES - FEES AND CHARGES 2012/13

Further to Minute No. 145 of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 8 February 2012, the Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Built Environment on the proposed fees and charges levied within the Planning Portfolio for 2012/13.

The report indicated that the Building (Local Authority Charges)
Regulations 2010 required the Council to annually review its Scheme of
Building Regulation Charges. The aim of the Scheme was to ensure that,
taking one financial year with another, the income derived from performing
the chargeable Building Control functions, as near as possible equates to
the costs incurred in performing these functions.

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) approval be given to the revised fees and charges for 2012/13 set out in Annex A of the report and the revised contributions to be set out in Supplementary Planning Guidance; and
- the Planning Committee be given delegated authority to approve the implementation of the proposed scale of fees for applications as soon as it becomes available and that the fees, together with any proposed subsequent amendments, be ratified by the Cabinet before their mandatory implementation.

122. FUTURE HOUSING REQUIREMENTS - THE SCOPE FOR AFFORDABLE RENT IN SEFTON

Further to Minute No. 144 of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 8 February 2012, the Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Built Environment and the Head of Planning Services on the findings of a recently commissioned and completed study which had looked at the impact of Affordable Rent, both in terms of what rent levels could be set at in Sefton and what implications it would have for the Council's current approved Section 106 affordable housing negotiating position.

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

RESOLVED:

That the minor amendments to the Council's approved Section 106 affordable housing negotiating position be approved and they be applied to all relevant planning applications received after the date of approval of this proposed policy change.

123. CORE STRATEGY FOR SEFTON - REPORT FOLLOWING CONSULTATION AT THE OPTIONS STAGE

Further to Minute No. 150 of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 22 February 2012, the Cabinet considered the report of the Director of Built Environment which provided a full summary of the consultation which took place on the Options Stage of the Core Strategy, the representations made to the Council during that consultation and the Council's proposed response.

A discussion took place on the concerns raised by members of the public regarding the possible future use of high grade agricultural land within the Borough for development purposes. There was a need to identify other local authorities within the North West and nationally who had similar issues and concerns on this issue in order that a network of such authorities could be formed for the purpose of lobbying the Government on the importance of the agricultural land resource in the planning system.

The Head of Planning Services reported on the proposals for the formation of a Member Steering Group to examine issues relating to the Core

CABINET- THURSDAY 1ST MARCH, 2012

Strategy and Cabinet Members requested that the Parish Councils within the Borough be represented on the Steering Group. The Chair indicated that update reports on employment, land and premises issues, the Council's housing requirements and agricultural land issues would be submitted to the Cabinet in the near future.

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) thanks be expressed to the Members of the Public who had responded to the consultation exercise on the Options Stage of the Core Strategy and Officers be thanked for the work undertaken in the production of the report;
- (2) the Report of Consultation following the Options Stage of the Core Strategy be accepted and the proposed programme of work as set out in Section 12 of the report be approved; and
- (3) the Head of Corporate Finance and ICT be authorised to consider the use of one-off resources, towards the costs of the work programme, subject to availability and consideration of the Council's outturn position for 2011/12.